
 

 

      SOUTHWEST AREA TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE     

MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, January 5, 2015 
3:00 p.m. 

 
District II Supervisor’s Office 

3338 Mt. Diablo Boulevard, Lafayette, CA 

 
Any document provided to a majority of the members of the Southwest Area Transportation Committee (SWAT) 
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at the meeting and at the Danville 
Town Offices, 510 La Gonda Way, Danville, CA during normal business hours. 
      
 
1.  CONVENE MEETING/SELF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
2.  PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Members of the public are invited to address the Committee regarding any item that is not listed on 
the agenda.  (Please complete a speaker card in advance of the meeting and hand it to a member of the staff) 

3.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 

4.  ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS 

5.  CONSENT CALENDAR: 

5.A Approval of Minutes:  SWAT Minutes of September 8, 2014  (Attachment - Action) 

5.B      Appoint SWAT Chair and Vice-Chair for 2015  (Attachment - Action) 

5.C      Appoint the South County SWAT Representative and Alternate Representative to the 

CCTA  (Attachment - Action) 

5.D      Appoint the Lamorinda SWAT Representative and Alternate Representative to the 

CCTA  (Attachment - Action) 

5.E      Appoint SWAT Interim Staff Representatives to the CCTA’s Technical Coordinating 

Committee (TCC)  (Attachment - Action) 

5.F      Approval of Revision to the SWAT Rules of Procedure  (Attachment - Action) 

End of Consent Calendar   

1



 

 

6.  REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

6.A Review and Approve a Work Plan and Memorandum of Understanding Addendum 
for SWAT Administrative Services for 2015 (Attachments – Action) 

6.B Presentation of SWAT 511 Contra Costa TDM Annual Report for 2014  
(Attachments to be provide as meeting handout) – No Action)                 

6.C Update/Discussion on Preliminary Discussions at CCTA for a I-680 High Capacity 
Transit Study  (Attachments – Action as determined) 

7.   WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS  (Attachments – Action as determined necessary) 

 CCTA summary of actions from Board meetings of 10/15/14 & 11/19/14 
 TRANSPAC summary of actions from Committee meetings of 11/13/14 & 12/11/14 
 TRANSPLAN summary of actions from Committee meetings of 12/11/14 
 CCC Notification – 12/2/14 Public Hearing on 2014 Housing Element Update 
 Danville Notification – Release of Draft Neg. Dec for 2014 Housing Element Update 
 Moraga Notifications – DRB Public Meeting (Via Moraga development) and                  

PC Public Hearing (36-unit SF development) 
 San Ramon Notifications – PC Public Hearing for Housing Element Update 

 
8.  DISCUSSION:  Next Agenda: 

   Approve the “Proposal for Adoption” Lamorinda Action Plan 
 Approve the “Proposal for Adoption” Tri-Valley Transportation 

Plan/Action 
 

9.  ADJOURNMENT to Monday, February 2nd, 2015, 3:00 p.m. (location TBD at the direction of 

the 2015 SWAT Chair).                                          

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



 

 

 
 

SOUTHWEST AREA TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE 
  MEETING LOCATION MAP 

 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, DISTRICT 2 SUPERVISOR’S OFFICE 

3338 MT. DIABLO BOULEVARD, LAFAYETTE, CA 

 
 
NOTES ON PARKING: 
- A limited number of on-site parking spaces are located behind the building.  Proceed up the 

driveway to the left of the building to parking lot. 
- On-street parking on Mt. Diablo Boulevard is time-limited, 2-hour parking. 

 

 

 
 

The SWAT Committee will provide reasonable accommodation for persons with disabilities planning to participate in SWAT monthly meetings. 
Please contact Andy Dillard at least 48 hours before the meeting at (925) 314-3384 or adillard@danville.ca.gov. 

Staff Contact:  Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
Phone:  (925) 314-3384 / E-Mail: adillard@danville.ca.gov. 

Agendas, minutes and other information regarding this committee can be found at: www.CCTA-SWAT.net 
 

3



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.A 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4



 
 

          SUMMARY MINUTES 
September 8, 2014 – 3:00 p.m. 
District II Supervisor’s Office 

3338 Mt. Diablo Blvd. 
Lafayette, California 

        
Committee members present:  Candace Andersen (Chair), Contra Costa County; Don Tatzin, 
City of Lafayette (Vice Chair); Amy Worth, City of Orinda; Michael Metcalf, Town of Moraga; 
Karen Stepper, Town of Danville; David Hudson, City of San Ramon. 

 
Staff members present:  Leah Greenblat, City of Lafayette; Ellen Clark, Town of Moraga; Chuck 
Swanson, City of Orinda; Robert Sarmiento, Contra Costa County; Darlene Amaral, City of San 
Ramon; Andy Dillard, Town of Danville. 
 
Others present:  Brad Beck, CCTA; Michael Tanner, BART;  
 
1. CONVENE MEETING/SELF INTRODUCTIONS:  Meeting called to order by Chair 

Andersen at 3:04 p.m. 
              
2. PUBLIC COMMENT: None 
 
3. BOARD MEMBER COMMENT:  
 
4. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS:  Andy Dillard recorded the minutes.  Extra agenda packets 

were made available.    
 
5. CONSENT CALENDAR:  
 

5.A Approval of Minutes: SWAT Minutes of July 7, 2014.   

5.B      Appoint SWAT Alternate Staff Representative to the CCTA’s Technical 
Coordinating Committee (TCC) 
 

ACTION:  Stepper/Tatzin/unanimous 
 
            End of Consent Calendar 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 
6. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

 
6.A Consider Approval of the 511 Contra Costa FY 2014-15 SWAT 

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Program and Budget: 

This item was continued from the July 7th, 2014 SWAT meeting.  At the July 
meeting, SWAT Committee members had several questions and requests for 
clarification of line items contained in the FY14-15 SWAT TDM Budget.  Darlene 
Amaral, SWAT TDM analyst, provided clarifications on the following items:  
 
 Increase in personnel costs for the core programs including the Countywide 

Vanpool Incentive Program, Southwest Employer Program, and Southwest 
Student Program: 
 

Darlene Amaral explained that the Countywide Vanpool Program personnel 
cost increase for FY14-15 was due to the time intensive online application 
forms and increase in marketing and outreach efforts in collaboration with 
Vanpool companies.  The Employer Program personnel increase was due to the 
BAAQMD mandated commuter benefit program and increase in participation 
representation and organization for the Bike to Work Day event.  The Student 
Program personnel cost increases were due to an increase in duties related to 
working with schools in promoting the program and preparing the annual 
surveys.   

 
 Increase in costs for the High School Carpool Incentive Program:   

 

There was not a new allocation in FY12-13 for this program as there was 
rollover of funds from the previous fiscal year.  With the rollover of funds 
having now been expended, there is a recommended new allocation.  There is 
an increase in previous year allocations due to more high schools participating 
and requesting incentives.  There was a lengthy discussion regarding the 
participation levels throughout the SWAT sub-region.   Committee Member 
Metcalf inquired if there was an opportunity to increase staff time and 
interaction/interface with the schools and if it would be effective in increasing 
participation.  Darlene Amaral responded that it would, but would require the 
cooperation of the schools.  Leah Greenblat inquired how many schools 
throughout the sub-region have implemented a student carpool program. 

 
 Participation levels and effectiveness of the Countywide Vanpool Program:   

 

It was reported that the program is being utilized, effective, and there continues 
to be a demonstrated need. Currently there are 46 Vanpools that come into 
Contra Costa, and 74 vanpools that originate and travel outside of Contra Costa.  
Committee Member Hudson suggested that there be more exploration of 
funding and matching fund or partnering opportunities to support or expand 
vanpools.   

 

ACTION:  Stepper/Metcalf/unanimous 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 
6.B Presentation of the Draft 2014 Contra Costa Countywide Comprehensive 

Transportation Plan (CTP) Update: 

Brad Beck, CCTA staff kicked on the Draft 2014 Contra Costa Countywide 
Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) Update.  A slide presentation of the 
CTP was prepared in advance of the countywide Public Outreach Meetings, and 
that would be presented at the upcoming CTP Workshop scheduled in Lafayette.  
Committee Member Tatzin had volunteered to present and facilitate the 
proceedings at the upcoming Lafayette workshop, and as such went through the 
slide presentation on behalf of the Committee members. Several great comments 
and suggestions were provided on the presentation and approach.   

ACTION: None 
 
7. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: The following written communication items were    

made available: 
 

 CCTA summary of actions from Board meeting of 7/16/14. 
 TRANSPAC summary of actions from Committee meeting of 7/10/14. 
 TRANSPLAN summary of actions from Committee meetings of 8/14/14. 
 Notification of Olympic Corridor Community Workshop. 
 Town of Moraga – Via Moraga Project Public Hearing. 
 

 ACTION:  None 
 
8. DISCUSSION:  Next/Future Agenda: 

 Report on TRAFFIX and Lamorinda School Bus Programs Ridership 
and Levels of Service 

 

ACTION:  None 
  
9. ADJOURNMENT:  The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, October 6th, 2014  

(or other meeting date as determined) at Supervisor Andersen’s Lamorinda Office, 3338 
Mt. Diablo Boulevard, Lafayette.   
 

ACTION:  Meeting adjourned by acting Chair Andersen at 4:05 p.m. 
 
 

Staff Contact: 
      Andy Dillard 
      Town of Danville 
      (925) 314-3384 PH 
      (925) 838-0797 FX 
      adillard@danville.ca.gov 
 
 
 
 
 

 

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.B 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



 

 

 
DATE: January 5, 2015 
 
TO:  SWAT Committee 
   
FROM: SWAT TAC 
 
SUBJECT: Rotation of SWAT Chair and Vice Chair for 2015 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
As described in the SWAT Rules of Procedure, the SWAT Chair and Vice Chair  
shall rotate on a 12-month term, from January through December.  The sequence 
of rotation is Contra Costa County, Lafayette, Danville, Orinda, Moraga, San 
Ramon.   
 
As such, the 2015 SWAT Chair is scheduled to rotate to the Lafayette SWAT 
Representative, and SWAT Vice Chair is scheduled to rotate to the Danville 
SWAT Representative. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Appoint the Lafayette SWAT Representative as the 2015 SWAT Chair, and 
appoint the Danville SWAT Represenative as the 2015 SWAT Vice Chair. 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff Contact: 
 Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
 Phone:  (925) 314-3384 

Email:  adillard@danville.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 
 

 

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.C 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10



 

 

 
DATE: January 5, 2015 
 
TO:  SWAT Committee 
   
FROM: SWAT TAC 
 
SUBJECT: South County SWAT Appointment to the Contra Costa 

Transportation Authority (CCTA) for 2015 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The SWAT representation to the CCTA, from the South County area, is rotated 
between the jurisdictions of San Ramon and Danville.  Currently, the San 
Ramon representative is serving year one of a two-year term through January 
31, 2015.  Per the SWAT Rules of Procedure, the South County representative 
was scheduled to rotate to the Danville representative for the two-year term 
beginning February 1, 2014 through January 31, 2016.   
 
At its January 7, 2008 meeting, the Southwest Area Transportation (SWAT) 
Committee amended its Rules of Procedure to add Section 4(e), as follows:  
 
“In order to achieve maximum participation at the CCTA from SWAT 
jurisdictions, whenever the Mayors’ Conference or Metropolitan Transportation 
Committsion (MTC) representative to CCTA is from a SWAT jurisdiction, then 
no other council member from that jurisdiction shall serve as a SWAT 
representative to CCTA.” 
 
As a Danville representative is serving a two-year term as the SWAT Mayor’s 
Conference representative to the CCTA through January 31, 2015, the San 
Ramon SWAT representative is scheduled to continued as the South County 
representative to the CCTA through January 31, 2015.  With the Danville 
representative’s Mayor’s Conference term expiring, it is recommened that the 
Danville SWAT representative assume the seat as South County SWAT 
representative for the remaining year of their scheduled two-year term, ending 
January 31, 2016. 
 
 

11



 

 2

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Appoint the Danville SWAT representative as the South County SWAT representative 
to the CCTA for the remainder of the two-year term, and the San Ramon SWAT 
representative as the alternate SWAT representative to the CCTA, through January 31, 
2016. 
 
Attachments:  CCTA letter dated 11/5/14 
 
 
 
Staff Contact: 
Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
Phone:  (925) 314-3384 
Email:  adillard@danville.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



13



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.D 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14



 

 

 
DATE: January 5, 2015 
 
TO:  SWAT Committee 
   
FROM: SWAT TAC 
 
SUBJECT: Lamorinda SWAT Appointment to the Contra Costa 

Transportation Authority (CCTA) for the 2015-16 Term 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The SWAT representation to the CCTA, from the Lamorinda area, is rotated 
among the jurisdictions of Lafayette, Orinda and Moraga.  Currently, the 
Moraga representative is serving a two-year term through January 31, 2015.  Per 
the SWAT Rules of Procedure, the Lamorinda representative is scheduled to 
rotate to the Lafayette representative for a two-year term beginning February 1, 
2015 through January 31, 2017.   
 
At its January 7, 2008 meeting, the Southwest Area Transportation (SWAT) 
Committee amended its Rules of Procedure to add Section 4(e), as follows:  
 

“In order to achieve maximum participation at the CCTA from SWAT 
jurisdictions, whenever the Mayors’ Conference or Metropolitan 
Transportation Committsion (MTC) representative to CCTA is from a 
SWAT jurisdiction, then no other council member from that jurisdiction 
shall serve as a SWAT representative to CCTA.” 

 
The Orinda representative currently serves as Chair of MTC, therefore, the 
alternate Lamorinda representative to the CCTA is scheduled to rotate back to 
the Moraga SWAT representative for the February 1, 2015 through January 31, 
2017 term.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

15



 

 2

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Appoint the Lafayette representative as the SWAT representative to the CCTA 
from the Lamorinda area, and the Moraga representative as the alternate, for a 
two-year term beginning February 1, 2015 through January 31, 2017. 
 
Attachments:  CCTA letter dated 11/5/14 
 
 
 
Staff Contact: 
 Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
 Phone:  (925) 314-3384 

Email:  adillard@danville.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 
 
 

16



17



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.E 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



 

 

 
DATE: January 5, 2015 
 
TO:  SWAT Committee 
   
FROM: SWAT TAC 
 
SUBJECT: Interim Appointments to CCTA’s Technical Coordinating 

Committee (TCC) for remainder of 2013-2015 Term 
 
 
At it’s meeting of March 4th, 2013, SWAT approved appointments to the 
Authority’s Technical Coordinating Committee (TCC) for a two-year term, 
beginning April 1, 2013 through March 31, 2015.  

 
As SWAT’s TCC Engineering representative has vacated her position with the 
City of Lafayette, it is required that a new Engineering representative and 
alternate be appointed for the remainder of the 2013-15 term.  Additionally, due 
to staff availablity, it is recommended that the Transportation primary and 
alternate switch roles for the remainder of the term.  As such, SWAT TAC 
recommends that the following TCC appointments be made for the remainder of 
the two-year term, ending March 31, 2015.   
 
      Primary Representative          Alternate Representative 

Planning:     Lisa Bobadilla, San Ramon       Ellen Clark, Moraga 

Engineering:     Tony Coe, Lafayette        Chuck Swanson, Orinda 

Transportation:   Andy Dillard, Danville        Tai Williams, Danville 

 

Staff Contact: 
 Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
 Phone:  (925) 314-3384 

Email:  adillard@danville.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 

19



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 5.F 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



 

 

 
DATE: January 5, 2015 
 
TO:  SWAT Committee 
   
FROM: SWAT Administrative Staff 
 
SUBJECT: Recommended Revisions to the SWAT Rules of Procedure 
 
 
 
As described in the SWAT Rules of Procedure, the SWAT Chair and Vice Chair  
shall rotate on a 12-month term, from January through December.  The sequence 
of rotation is Contra Costa County, Lafayette, Danville, Orinda, Moraga, San 
Ramon.   
 
Currently, the Rules of Procedure do not specify Committee meeting protocol in 
the event of the absence of the Chair.  As requested by SWAT, the following 
new subsection is proposed under Section 3, “SWAT Chair and Vice Chair”, for 
consideration in order to address chairing of meeting protocol: 
 

“3(d)   The Chair, or in his/her absence the Vice Chair, shall be the presiding 
officer of the Committee and shall assume his/her place and duties as 
such immediately following his/her appointment.  In the event the 
Vice Chair is absent, the Chair shall have the right to name any 
member of the Committee to perform the duties of the Chair, but such 
substitution shall not extend beyond adjournment.” 

 
Additionally, it is recommended that under Section 5(9), “Functions of SWAT”, 
that there be reference made to the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee in addition to the Technical Coordinating Committee. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve revisions to the SWAT Rules of Procedure, adding Section “3(d)” and 
revising Section “5(9)”.  
 
Attachments:  A – SWAT Rules of Procedure (Draft Revision Dated 1/5/15) 
 

21



 

 2

Staff Contact: 
 Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
 Phone:  (925) 314-3384 

Email:  adillard@danville.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 
 

 

22



 1

     SOUTHWEST REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING COMMITTEE  
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
DRAFT Revision Dated 1/5/15 

(revisions are underlined) 
 

1. Composition. The Southwest Area Transportation Planning Committee (“SWAT”) is 
composed of representatives from Danville, Lafayette, Moraga, Orinda, San Ramon 
and the County.  

 
2. Membership of the SWAT. 
 
       (a)    Composition  
  
                (1)  There shall be six voting members on the SWAT Board. Voting members     
                       must be elected officials, one each from the five city/town councils, and   
                       one from the County Board of Supervisors. If there are two supervisors  
                       who represent the region, the Board shall decide which of them is the  
                       voting member.  
  
                          (2)   Each Council/Board of Supervisors shall appoint a representative to the  
                                 Contra Costa Transportation Authority Citizen Advisory Committee (CAC)  
                                 This representative may be a Planning or Transportation Commissioner  
                                  or Committee member who will serve at the discretion of the  
                                  Council/Board of Supervisors. The role and term of this representative  
                                  are to be defined by the Council/Board of Supervisors, and shall be  
                                  forwarded to SWAT. Citizen Advisory committee representatives are not  
                                  voting members of SWAT.  
 

        (b)    Terms of Office  
 

Appointments to the Committee are for two-year terms, coterminous with                              
those of the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA). The appointee must 
remain a council member, mayor, or supervisor to serve.  

(c)    Alternate  

Each member jurisdiction may appoint an alternate who must be and remain a 
mayor, council member or supervisor in order to serve.  

(d)    Removal  

Alternates or representatives may be removed from office by the appointing 
jurisdiction. If a member is removed, the appointing jurisdiction shall appoint a 
replacement to fill the remainder of the member’s term within 30 days after the 
removal.  

 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

23



 2

 
3. SWAT Chair and Vice-Chair  

       (a)    The SWAT Chair and Vice-Chair shall rotate on a 12-month term, from  
       January through December.  
 

(b)  The sequence of rotation shall be, Contra Costa County, Lafayette, Danville,    
         Orinda, Moraga, San Ramon.  
 

       (c)    The Vice-Chair shall be the jurisdiction that is next in rotation to hold the Chair  
                          Seat. 
 

(d)    The Chair, or in his/her absence the Vice Chair, shall be the presiding officer 
of the Committee and shall assume his/her place and duties as such 
immediately following his/her appointment.  In the event the Vice Chair is 
absent, the Chair shall have the right to name any member of the Board to 
perform the duties of the Chair, but such substitution shall not extend beyond 
adjournment. 

 
4.    Representation on Contra Costa Transportation Authority  

        (a)    The voting members of SWAT will appoint from among themselves two  
                 representatives and two alternates to the CCTA. Representatives and  
                 alternates must be and remain mayors or city council members.  

 
     One representative and one alternate shall be selected from the San Ramon  
     Valley (SRV) cities and one representative and one alternate shall be   
     selected from the Lamorinda cities. Representatives shall serve two-year  
     terms.  
 

       (b)    Commissioners shall adhere to the policy direction of the SWAT.  
 

     Representatives or alternates may be removed from office by an absolute 2/3    
     vote of the Committee (four votes). If a member is removed, the Committee  
     shall appoint a replacement to fill the remainder of the member’s term as    
     soon as possible after the removal. It is up to the subregions to make their  
     determinations on selecting their representatives.  
 

        (c)    It is important to be fully represented at the Authority meetings. If the member  
                or alternate cannot be present, the member shall attempt to have another  
                elected official from the same area (Lamorinda or SRV) attend the Authority  
                meeting.  
  

       (d)    The position of the representative to the Authority should be rotated among  
                          the member cities of the subregion (Lamorinda, SRV) at the end of each   

    term. 
 

(e)    In order to achieve maximum participation at the CCTA from SWAT   
jurisdictions, whenever the Mayors’ Conference or Metropolitan 

24



 3

Transportation Commission (MTC) representative to CCTA is from a 
         SWAT jurisdiction, then no other council member from that jurisdiction  
         shall serve as a SWAT representative to CCTA. 

 
5.    Functions of SWAT  

       (1)    To review and coordinate transportation plans and project proposals for the  
                southwest region.  

(2) To serve as an advisory unit to the Contra Costa Transportation Authority, on all  
         matters concerning the “Transportation Improvement and Growth Management  
         Program” adopted by the voters of Contra Costa County on November 8, 1988.  
(3) To provide a forum on transportation issues which are regional in nature and to  
         convey information on these issues to each jurisdiction.  
(4) To consider other transportation issues of mutual concern both in the southwest    
         region and at a countywide level. Examples of such issues are integration of traffic  
         signal systems, improvement in transit and paratransit systems, and transportation  
         systems management.  
(5)    Determine, pursuant to Section 27 of CCTA Ordinance No.88-01, the financial 

programming of the “Major Arterials” as defined therein, and provide input into the 
CCTA Strategic Plan update.  

(6)    Review all proposed official actions of the Authority and provide the Authority with   
         recommendations on such proposed action.  
(7)    To coordinate and facilitate the process of taking appeals from actions of the  
         Commission pursuant to Section 8 and 9 of Commission Ordinance No. 88-01.  
(8)    To administer the Transportation Demand Management (TDM) Ordinances of  
         member jurisdictions, at their options, and to accept grants for this purpose. Grant  
         funds will be administered by a member jurisdiction designated by SWAT.  
(9) To assign members of the SWAT TAC to the CCTA’s Technical Coordinating  
        Committee (TCC) and the Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee 

(CBPAC) to serve as representatives of the Committee and its member  
         jurisdictions.  

 
6.    SWAT Staffing  

SWAT may engage a member agency to provide staff services. Those services shall 
include:  

  Attendance at monthly SWAT and SWAT TAC meetings.  
  Maintenance of historical documents, records, and correspondence of the SWAT Board.  
  Recordation and production of written minutes of SWAT Board meetings.  
  Production and dissemination of the monthly agenda packet in accordance with state  
     law governing public meetings. 
  Develop and disseminate correspondence as directed by the Board or the Chair.  
  Respond to administrative or historical inquiries from SWAT member jurisdictions, outside,       
     agencies, and the public. Refer other questions to SWAT chair or other  
     appropriate individuals. 
  Act as primary contact point and disseminate environmental documents, as outlined by    
     SWAT, CCTA Lamorinda Project Management Committee, Tri-Valley Transportation   
     Committee, and other agreements, as requested by the SWAT Board and /or the Chair.  

25



 4

  Perform other administrative duties only as directed by the SWAT Board.  
  The member agency providing staff services may determine the most appropriate  

 method of providing above service, as agreed by the SWAT Board. 
 

 
7.    Agenda Setting Procedures  

The agenda for each meeting will be set by SWAT staff in consultation with the TAC 
members, Authority staff, and the Chair of SWAT, except that any member of SWAT can 
place an item on the agenda for the upcoming meeting by notifying SWAT staff of their 
request at least one week before the scheduled date of the meeting. 

DRAFT REVISION DATED 1/5/15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
U:\Transportation\Agencies & Committees\SWAT\SWAT Administration\Rules of Procedure\SWAT Rules of 
Procedures_Draft Rev 010515.rtf 

26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6.A 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27



 

 

 
DATE: January 5, 2015 
 
TO:  SWAT Committee 
   
FROM: SWAT TAC  
 
SUBJECT: SWAT Administrative Services for 2015 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At its January 7, 2013 meeting, the Southwest Area Transportation (SWAT) 
Committee authorized a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Town of 
Danville to provide “Basic Administrative Services (Tier 1)” for the 2013 and 2014 
contract service years in the amount of $32,500 per year (Attachment A).  The 
following is a summary of the expenditures for the 2013 and 2014 contract service 
years: 
 

2013 Contract Service – Budget Amount: $32,500.00 

 Budgeted Meetings:  20  

 Actual Meetings Held: 17  

2013 Contract Service Expenditures: $27,625.00 

2012 Budget Balance Carryover <$0.00> 

2013 Contract Services Due: $27,625.00 

          (per jurisdiction)  $4,604.17 
 

2014 Contract Service – Budget Amount: $32,500.00 

 Budgeted Meetings:  20  

 Actual Meetings Held:  15*  

2014 Contract Service Expenditures:* $24,375.00 

2013 Budget Balance Carryover <$0.00> 

2014 Contract Services Due:* $24,375.00 

          (per jurisdiction)* $4,062.50 
 
 

 

28



 

 2

DISCUSSION 
 
The SWAT Administrative Services contract for the period January 1, 2013 through 
December 31, 2014, has expired.  As Danville has served as SWAT administrator since 
2007, SWAT TAC took the opportunity to gauge interest and discuss rotating the 
administraitve duties to another SWAT jurisdiction in the future.  As such, San Ramon 
indicated a desire to assume SWAT administrative duties.  As Danville has been assuming 
the role for the past eight years, it was recommended that Danville remain the administrator 
for an additional six months, and in order to provide a transition period for the new SWAT 
administrator.   
 
At this time, SWAT recommends that the current MOU with Danville be extended for a 
period of six months, expiring June 30, 2015 (Attachment B).  Additionally, SWAT TAC 
recommends to realign the administrative contract services period from a calendar year to 
fiscal year basis, beginning July 1st, 2015.  A new SWAT administrative services MOU for 
FY15-16 would be presented for SWAT’s consideration at the May or June 2015 SWAT 
meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
With Danville’s concurrence, the SWAT TAC recommends that SWAT authorize the 
following: 
 
1. Extend the SWAT Administrative Services MOU with Danville for a period for six 

months, expiring on June 30, 2015; and 
2. Adjust future Administrative Services contract year periods to align with the fiscal 

year, from July 1st through June 30th; and 
3. Consider a new MOU for SWAT Administrative Services (to be proposed) with San 

Ramon prior to the start of FY15-16. 
 

 
Attachments:  A – Existing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for SWAT  

Administrative Services for the Period 2013 & 2014 
B – Draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Addendum No. 1 for 

SWAT Administrative Services for the Period January 1 - June  30, 
2015 

 
 

Staff Contact: 
 Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
 Phone:  (925) 314-3384 

Email:  adillard@danville.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 
 
 

29



30

adillard
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



31



32



33



34



 

 

  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
ADDENDUM No. 1 

  
THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) ADDENDUM is entered into as of 
the ______ day of                          , by and between the Southwest Area Transportation 
Committee, therein called the "SWAT Committee", and Town of Danville herein called the 
"Town". 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, SWAT Committee is a Regional Transportation Planning Committee (RTPC) of the 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA); and  
 
WHEREAS, SWAT Committee consists of the communities of the southwest Contra Costa 
County area including Danville, Lafayette, Moraga, Orinda, San Ramon, and the unincorporated 
areas of Contra Costa County in the southwest area; and 
 
WHEREAS, SWAT Committee has contracted with the Town for staff services related to 
administration of the SWAT Committee’s work and activities; and 
 
WHEREAS, SWAT Committee authorized the SWAT Chair and Vice-Chair to review and 
execute a contract at its                            , 2015 meeting; and 
 
WHEREAS, both parties wish to extend the agreement by six months. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
AGREEMENTS 

 
1. Time of Performance:  The services of the Town commenced on January 1, 2013 

through the execution of the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and is extended 
through June 30, 2015 following the execution of this Addendum. 

 
2. With the exception of paragraph 1 above, all other provisions of the MOU between the 

parties shall remain in full force and effect without modification. 
     
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the SWAT Committee and Contractor have executed this MOU 
Addendum as of the date first above written. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B

35



 

 
 2

SOUTHWEST AREA TRANSPORTION  CONTRACTOR 
COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________  By: ____________________________ 
        SWAT Chair                                   Town of Danville 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
        SWAT Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
 
By: ______________________________ 
        Legal Council 

36



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 6.C 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

37



 

 

 
DATE: January 5, 2015 
 
TO:  SWAT Committee 
   
FROM: SWAT TAC 
 
SUBJECT: Update on Preliminary Discussions at CCTA for a High Capacity 

Transit Study for the I-680 Corridor 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
During public review of the Draft 2014 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP), 
the Authority reported that there was strong support received for improvements 
along the I-680 corridor between Walnut Creek and Dublin stemming from 
concerns of increased levels of congestion along the I-680 corridor, and given 
the lack of viable transit options. 
 
As part of the public outreach effort for the 2014 Countywide Transportation 
Plan (CTP) update, there was a web-based tool that was used that allowed the 
the public to submit “bright ideas” for transportation improvements.  It was 
reported by CCTA that of the 350 bright ideas received through the website 
portal to date, 37 sought improvements along I-680. Additional public input 
received through other mediums (such as paper surveys, emails, publc 
workshops, etc.) also indicated support for I-680 corridor improvements.   
 
DISCUSSION 
 
In response to the comments received, and the Authority Board’s direction, 
Authority staff recommended further study of transit options along the I-680 
corridor (Attachment A). It should also be noted that, through discussion and 
direction at the Tri-Valley Transportation Council Techinical Advisory 
Committee (TVTC TAC), language was added to the Draft Tri-Valley 
Transportation Plan/Action Plan for Routes of Regional Signficance to support 
“further study of high-capacity transit options for the I-680 corridor“ in both 
Contra Costa and Alameda counties.  Central County also added identical 
language supporting consideration of such a study as an action item within their 

38



 

 2

Action Plan for Routes of Regional Significance.  The “Proposal for Adoption” 
Tri-Valley Transportation Plan/Action Plan is scheduled for consideration of 
approval at the upcoming regular TVTC meeting of January 26th, 2015, and for 
consideration of approval at SWAT’s regularly scheduled meeting of Feburary 
2nd, 2015. 
 
It should also be noted that in West County, a similar study is currently being 
developed to evaluate high-capacity transit options for the I-80 corridor. The 
cost of the West County study is estimated at $1.2 million. While the West 
County study includes the existing BART corridor and points north, the I-680 
study would focus primarily on the Walnut Creek to Dublin corridor, and which 
currently has only limited express bus service. 
 
Previous Studies Involving I-680 Corridor 
 
In 2002, the Authority funded the I-680 Investment Options Analysis. This study 
involved the qualitative analysis of a number of potential investment options, 
including BART, Light Rail, busways, Express Bus, and Express lanes. In 
response to community concerns, the options did not include the addition of 
mixed-flow lanes on I-680, or the construction of facilities along the Iron Horse 
Trail. The cost of this study was $140,000 (in 2002 dollars)..  
 
Prior to the 2003 study, the Authority conducted a corridor analysis of I-680 in 
the early 1990’s. In parallel, Caltrans developed a series of studies for the 
corridor, including the I-680 Corridor Concept Report, published in 1985 and 
again in 2002. The latest one of these Caltrans studies is called the Corridor 
System Management Program (CSMP), and is scheduled for completion by the 
end of 2014. The current CSMP examines programmed projects, which include 
additional express bus service in the I-680 corridor, but BART and other rail 
services are not included in the analysis.  
 
Another study along the corridor was the I-680 HOV/Express Bus Access Study. 
Completed in June 2010 using Regional Measure (RM) 2 funding, this study 
examined, among other things, ways of providing direct connector ramps from 
the HOV lanes into the Walnut Creek and Pleasant Hill BART stations. The 
conclusion for this study was that of all of the options considered, the most 
favorable option was extending the southbound I-680 HOV lane from 
Geary Road/Treat Boulevard through the SR 24 interchange to Livorna Road. 
 
Authority Board Options Considered 
 
At its meeting of December 17th, the Authority Board considered the following 
options:  
 

1. Do Nothing  
 
 

39



 

 3

2. Build upon the 2003 I-680 Investment Options Analysis. It would include 
an update of the existing and future (2040) travel patterns and congestion 
levels, a review of the latest in transit technologies and service 
innovations, a re-examination of technical feasibility and costs for each 
option, and a re-assessment of the public and stakeholder attitudes about 
the transit options being considered. This option is estimated to cost 
approximately $250,000, and could be accomplished in approximately 
six months using local Measure J Planning funds and a sole-source 
selection of DKS Associates to perform the study.  
 

3. Prepare an entirely new study, taking a fresh look at all available modes 
and technologies and examining ridership forecasts, alignment options, 
potential environmental impacts, costs and funding programs in greater 
detail than Option 2. This option is estimated to cost approximately $1 
million. It would require use of federal funds and adherence to federal 
consultant procurement requirements. The procurement process could 
take about 6 months, and the study itself would take approximately two 
years to complete.  
 

4. In parallel with Options 2 and 3, implement modern day community 
outreach techniques, by asking the general public and the private 
sectorcommuters, employers, and residents along the corridor for their 
ideas on how best to improve the corridor.  

 
The Authority Board took action to recommend Options 2 and 4, and to proceed 
with the preparation of a scope for a High Capacity Transit Study for the I-680 
corridor that would expand and build upon the 2003 I-680 Investment Options 
Analysis. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Provide concurrence to CCTA for the development of a High Capacity Transit 
Study for the I-680 Corridor, and that builds and expands upon the 2003 I-680 
Options and Analysis.    
 
 
Attachment A – CCTA Planning Committee Staff Report dated  
                           December 3, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff Contact: 
 Andy Dillard, Town of Danville 
 Phone:  (925) 314-3384 

Email:  adillard@danville.ca.gov 
Web:  www.CCTA-SWAT.net 

40



 

Planning Committee STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date:  December 3, 2014 

S:\05-PC Packets\2014\12\Authority\04 Brdltr Options for I680 Highcapacity transit study v1.docx  

Subject Preliminary Discussion of Options for Preparing a High-Capacity Transit 
Study for the I-680 Corridor 

Summary of Issues In response to direction from the Authority Board and in conjunction 
with comments received on the Draft 2014 Countywide Transportation 
Plan (CTP), staff has begun exploring options for preparing a high-

capacity transit study for the I-680 corridor. Through the Authority’s 

web-based public engagement tool, members of the public were able to 
submit their “bright ideas” for transportation improvements in Contra 
Costa. The site also allowed participants to voice their support for ideas 
submitted by others. Initial review of the input received indicates a very 
high level of support for a transit connection from Walnut Creek to 
Dublin. The last time this was studied was in 2003, prior to the Measure 
C reauthorization effort, with specific intent to develop viable projects 
and programs for consideration in the Measure J Expenditure Plan 
(2004). Staff proposes preparing a scope, schedule, and budget for 
possible update to the previous study or initiation of an entirely new 
review and analysis of corridor options. 

Recommendations Provide direction to staff regarding next steps for the development of a 
high-capacity transit study for the I-680 corridor. The Planning 
Committee recommended moving forward with a large study using 
federal funds. Since the Planning Committee met on December 3, 2014, 
staff has received additional information regarding scope, cost, funding, 
and schedule for an I-680 corridor study. In consideration of the new 
information received, staff recommends that the Authority consider all 
options, including doing a smaller study using local (Measure J) funds. 

Financial Implications The cost of the study could range from $250,000 (for an update of the 

previous study), to over $1,000,000 for a comprehensive, quantitative 
study involving preliminary concepts and cost estimating. The lower-
cost study could be funded using Measure J Planning funds (Org. OCP-
18A). The higher-cost study would be funded using federal Surface 
Transportation Program (STP) funds available through MTC (Org. OCP-
18B. 

41

adillard
Text Box
REVISION PRESENTED FOR 12/17/14 CCTA BOARD MEETING

adillard
Text Box
ATTACHMENT A



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT 

December 3, 2014 
Page 2 of 6 

S:\05-PC Packets\2014\12\Authority\04 Brdltr Options for I680 Highcapacity transit study v1.docx  

Options 1. See descriptions of Options 1 through 4 below. 

Attachments (See PC 
Packet dated 12/3/14) 

A. Excerpts from the I-680 Investment Options Analysis Final Report, 
May 19, 2003, prepared by DKS Associates. 

Changes from 
Committee 

The Planning Committee recommended moving forward with Option 3 - 

prepare an entirely new study looking at all available modes and 

technologies, at a cost of approximately $1 million (funding source to be 
determined). The Planning Committee also supported including  
outreach to the general public and the private sector for new ideas on 
how best to improve the corridor, and incorporation of information-age 
technologies to generate innovative concepts and solutions.  

 

Background 

During public review of the Draft 2014 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP), the Authority 
received strong support for improvements along the I-680 corridor between Walnut Creek and 

Dublin. Many stakeholders and participants voiced concern about the increasing levels of 
congestion on I-680, and the lack of viable transit options.  

The public’s concern about I-680 is well documented. Recent studies of I-680 indicate recurring 
congestion, with average delay in the range of 1,500 to 1,800 hours per day (per direction). On 
a daily basis, long queues form in the a.m. peak period on southbound I-680, and in the p.m., 
the northbound commute is highly congested and continues to increase.  

In 2000, the I-680/SR 24 interchange project was completed, virtually doubling the capacity of 
the interchange. Shortly thereafter, I-680 was widened from the Benicia-Martinez Bridge to the 
I-580 interchange in Alameda County, expanding the freeway from four to six lanes, and adding 

carpool lanes where feasible. Bus service and transit options are limited. Approximately 232 
buses per day traverse the corridor within Contra Costa, with service primarily concentrated 
between Walnut Creek BART and Bishop Ranch in San Ramon. 

Public Input Received 

The public outreach effort for the 2014 Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) update, included 
use of an innovative new web-based tool that allowed members of the public to submit their 

42



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT 

December 3, 2014 
Page 3 of 6 

S:\05-PC Packets\2014\12\Authority\04 Brdltr Options for I680 Highcapacity transit study v1.docx  

“bright ideas” for transportation improvements through the “keepcontracostamoving.net” 
website. To date, of the 350 bright ideas received through the website portal, 37 of them 
sought improvements along I-680. In addition, improvements to I-680 received strong support 
from members of the public across all public input mediums including paper surveys, emails 
and the in-person public workshops held in Walnut Creek and Lafayette. 

To be responsive to the comments we received, and the Board’s direction, Authority staff 

recommends further study of transit options along the I-680 corridor. This call for action will 
also be captured in both the Central County and the Tri-Valley Action Plans, which support 
“further study of high-capacity transit options for the I-680 corridor“ in both Contra Costa and 
Alameda counties.  

In West County, a similar study is taking shape to evaluate high-capacity transit options for the 
I-80 corridor.  The cost of the West County study is estimated at $1.2 million. While the West 
County study includes the existing BART corridor and points north, the I-680 study would focus 
primarily on the Walnut Creek to Dublin corridor, which currently has only limited express bus 
service. 

Previous Studies 

In 2002, the Authority funded the I-680 Investment Options Analysis. This study involved the 
qualitative analysis of a number of potential investment options, including BART, Light Rail, 
busways, Express Bus, and Express lanes. In response to community concerns, the options did 
not include the addition of mixed-flow lanes on I-680, or the construction of facilities along the 
Iron Horse Trail. The cost of this study was $140,000 (in 2002 dollars).  Attachment A provides 
excerpts from the Final Report. 

Prior to the 2003 study, the Authority conducted a corridor analysis of I-680 in the early 1990’s. 
In parallel, Caltrans developed a series of studies for the corridor, including the I-680 Corridor 
Concept Report, published in 1985 and again in 2002. The latest one of these Caltrans studies is 

called the Corridor System Management Program (CSMP), and is scheduled for completion by 
the end of 2014. The current CSMP examines programmed projects, which include additional 
express bus service in the I-680 corridor, but BART and other rail services are not included in 
the analysis.  

Another study along the corridor was the I-680 HOV/Express Bus Access Study. Completed in 
June 2010 using Regional Measure (RM) 2 funding, this study examined, among other things, 
ways of providing direct connector ramps from the HOV lanes into the Walnut Creek and 

43



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT 

December 3, 2014 
Page 4 of 6 

S:\05-PC Packets\2014\12\Authority\04 Brdltr Options for I680 Highcapacity transit study v1.docx  

Pleasant Hill BART stations. The conclusion for this study was that of all of the options 
considered, the most favorable option was extending the southbound I-680 HOV lane from 
Geary Road/Treat Boulevard through the SR 24 interchange to Livorna Road.  

Options 

The Authority has the following options: 

1. Do Nothing 
2. Build upon the 2003 I-680 Investment Options Analysis. It would include an 

update of the existing and future (2040) travel patterns and congestion levels, a 
review of the latest in transit technologies and service innovations, a re-
examination of technical feasibility and costs for each option, and a re-
assessment of the public and stakeholder attitudes about the transit options 
being considered. This option is estimated to cost approximately $250,000, and 
could be accomplished in approximately six months using local Measure J 
Planning funds and a sole-source selection of DKS Associates to perform the 
study. 

3. Prepare an entirely new study, taking a fresh look at all available modes and 

technologies and examining ridership forecasts, alignment options, potential 
environmental impacts, costs and funding programs in greater detail than Option 
2.  This option is estimated to cost approximately $1 million. It would require use 
of federal funds and adherence to federal consultant procurement requirements. 
The procurement process could take about 6 months, and the study itself would 
take approximately two years to complete. 

4. In parallel with Options 2 and 3, implement modern day community outreach 

techniques, by asking the general public and the private sectorcommuters, 
employers, and residents along the corridor for their ideas on how best to 
improve the corridor.  

Regarding Option 4, opening the door for new ideas from the public could spawn innovative 
solutions to a problem that has not gone away, despite the significant investments in highway 
improvements along the corridor.  A similar yet more traditional route would be to issue a 
“Request for Information” to transit providers, design -engineering firms, and other 
stakeholders to seek their suggestions on how to address the issue of congestion on I-680. 

Staff seeks Authority direction on how to proceed. 

44



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT 

December 3, 2014 
Page 5 of 6 

S:\05-PC Packets\2014\12\Authority\04 Brdltr Options for I680 Highcapacity transit study v1.docx  

Planning Committee Discussion (New Subsection) 

At the Planning Committee meeting on December 3rd, staff presented the options as outlined 
above. Martin Engelmann, the Authority’s Deputy Executive Director for Planning, stated that 
Option 2 (Build upon the 2003 I-680 Investment Options Analysis) could be completed for 
$250,000, and that Option 3 (Prepare an entirely new study), would cost about $1 million. 

Commissioner Mitchoff raised questions about building upon a 12-year-old-study. She 
suggested that if we do a study, that we get the best study possible. Commissioner Mitchoff 
stated that it was difficult to draw a clear distinction between Options 2 and 3, since both 
options would draw from and build upon the previously completed 2003 study.  

Randy Iwasaki, the Authority’s Executive Director, stated that Option 3 was a larger, more 
comprehensive study that would involve exploring new technologies, such as personal rapid 
transit (PRT). The Option 3 study would open the door to PRT, autonomous vehicles, and other 
emerging technologies that are considered more viable today than they were 12 years ago. 

Commissioner Mitchoff made a motion (seconded by Commissioner Hudson) to prepare an 
entirely new study, taking a fresh look at all available modes, recognizing that a funding source 

was needed for the larger study, and that we consider the possibility of private donations or 
corporate contributions to help us move forward on this. Following the motion, there was 
discussion and public comment. 

Kristin Connnelly, President/CEO of the East Bay Leadership Council, and Executive Director of 
the Contra Costa Economic Partnership spoke during public comment. Ms. Connelly thanked 
the committee for considering the item, and suggested that, notwithstanding concerns about 

timing and funding, that the Authority consider all options and come up with a proposal that 
was both politically and financially viable. Commissioner Hudson asked for clarification 
regarding which option to pick. Ms. Connelly replied that she favored Option 3. 

Authority Chair Romick spoke in favor of creating a synergy between the I-80 study and the I-
680 study, and voiced support for Option 3, in combination with Option 4 (reaching out to the 
public and private sector for their ideas). 

Next Steps (New Subsection) 

Upon receiving further direction from the Authority Board, staff will further develop the scope, 
schedule, and budget for the selected option. Funding remains an issue. At present, local 

45



Planning Committee STAFF REPORT 

December 3, 2014 
Page 6 of 6 

S:\05-PC Packets\2014\12\Authority\04 Brdltr Options for I680 Highcapacity transit study v1.docx  

Measure J planning funds are limited, but adequate funding could be made available for Option 
2, contingent upon the Authority’s approval of a budget amendment for FY 2014-15. Additional 
federal funds will be available for the larger study (Option 3), but it would require several years 
to accumulate enough to fund a million dollar corridor study. Staff notes that the I-80 High 
Capacity Investment Study, which the Authority approved in November, has first call on 
additional federal funds available through MTC. 

Staff notes that since the Planning Committee met on December 3, a number of considerations 
have arisen which suggest that Option 2 may be a more expeditious and productive course of 
action. Option 2 is the smaller study ($250,000). Regarding schedule, it would be possible to 
fast-track Option 2 and begin work in early 2015 by sole-sourcing the study to DKS Associates, 
the firm that conducted the previous study. Option 3, the larger study that the Planning 
Committee recommended, would require use of federal funds. This could delay the schedule 
because a competitive selection process would need to be undertaken, and federal funding 
would need to be procured through MTC. These two factors alone could delay the Option 3 
study for six months before work could begin. 

A further consideration is that DKS Associates has indicated that under Option 2 it would be 
able to evaluate new technologies for the I-680 corridor, expanding upon the technologies that 

were considered in the 2003 study. At the Planning Committee meeting, staff told the 
Committee that the bigger study (Option 3) would be needed to cover new technologies.  

In view of the scope, schedule, and cost considerations at hand, staff recommends Option 2.   

46



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 7 
 

 

 

 

 

 

47



48



49



Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 2999 Oak Road, Ste. 100, Walnut Creek, CA 94597
Phone: 925-256-4700    Fax: 925-256-4701    Website: www.ccta.net

 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

October 17, 2014 
 
Active Transportation Program:  September 5, 2014 
MTC released its staff recommendations for regional project awards.  MTC received 127 
applications totaling over $200 million in funding requests.  Eleven projects were approved for 
funding, including the Authority’s Riverside Avenue Pedestrian Overcrossing which is part of the 
larger I-80/San Pablo Dam Road interchange project.  The project is targeted to start construction 
next year and will receive $682,000 in funding from the Active Transportation Program. 
 
Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) Workshop: Southwest County: September 10, 2014 
The third CTP in-person public workshop was held at 7:00 p.m. at the Lafayette Veterans Hall. 
Approximately 35 people attended.  SWAT Chair Candace Andersen and Commissioner Dave 
Hudson welcomed the attendees and gave introductory remarks. Don Tatzin of Lafayette gave 
the slide presentation. This was followed by public comment. 
 
CTP Presentation to Contra Costa Public Managers Association (PMA): September 11, 2014 
Martin Engelmann attended the September PMA meeting in Walnut Creek to brief the city 
managers on the Draft 2014 CTP. 
 
CTP Presentation to Building Industry Association (BIA): September 12, 2014 
Martin Engelmann presented the 2014 CTP to a gathering of building industry representatives in 
San Ramon. Lisa Vorderbrueggen, the Executive Director for Governmental Affairs at BIA, hosted 
the meeting. 
 
ITRI International Inc.:  September 12, 2014 
I was invited to a lunch meeting by representatives from the Industrial Technology Research 
Institute (ITRI) of Taiwan.  There were representatives from various technology firms in Taiwan 
attending the meeting.  ITRI International is a US based subsidiary of ITRI based in San Jose.  
There were several presentations regarding connected vehicles.  Jack Hall attended the meeting 
with me. 
 
Meeting with Allison Brooks:  September 15, 2014 
Ross Chittenden, Martin Engelmann, and I met with Allison Brooks, Executive Director of the Bay 
Area Joint Policy Committee (JPC). The JPC brings together commissioners from MTC, ABAG, 
BCDC and the Bay Area Air Quality Management District. Allison is interested in learning more 
about the Congestion Management Agencies and is excited to help support the Northern 
Waterfront Economic Development Initiative.  
 
 
 

7.3-1 50



Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 2999 Oak Road, Ste. 100, Walnut Creek, CA 94597
Phone: 925-256-4700    Fax: 925-256-4701    Website: www.ccta.net

CTP Presentation to East Bay Regional Park District (EBRPD): September 16, 2014 
At the September meeting of the EBRPD Board in Oakland, Martin Engelmann presented the 
2014 CTP. EBRPD staff has responded by submitting a list of proposed trail projects for inclusion 
in the Comprehensive Transportation Project List (CTPL). 
 
SF Examiner Interview:  September 17, 2014 
I was interviewed by Jessica Kwong.  She was interested in the Car.ma program to rebate the toll 
across the San Francisco – Oakland Bay Bridge for carpoolers using the Car.ma mobile app.   
 
Tech Series - Road-Tech:  September 17, 2014 
Joe Jeffrey from Road-Tech Safety Services Incorporated and David Berkman from ADDCO 
presented their technology.  They work together to mesh software with hardware to provide 
work zone information through changeable message signs.  They provided the ITS work zone 
solutions for the FIX 50 project in Sacramento.  We are working with industry to provide freeway 
work zone information for the upcoming San Pablo Dam Road project on I-80. 
 
Brigadier General Mark Toy: September 17, 2014 
I met with General Toy in San Francisco.  We met last year at an AAa/e leadership speech in Los 
Angeles.  He was a Colonel in the Army Corps of Engineers (ACOE).  ACOE is responsible for 
issuing and enforcing the federal clean water act.  He was recently promoted to Brigadier 
General in charge of a large region which includes the Bay Area. 
 
CTP Presentation to Tri-Valley Transportation Council (TVTC): September 17, 2014 
The TVTC met in Danville for its regular quarterly meeting and received a presentation from 
Martin Engelmann on the Draft 2014 CTP. 
 
California Transportation Foundation (CTF) Board Meeting:  September 18, 2014 
I attended the CTF board meeting in Sacramento.  I am the Chair of the Caltrans liaison 
committee and I reported on the most recent liaison committee meeting.  The next CTF-
sponsored education symposium will be held in Santa Cruz on November 6 – 7, 2014.  The 
symposium is designed to pair university students with public and private sector transportation 
officials to work on solutions to predetermined problem statements.  I attended the symposium 
many years ago and felt that it was valuable.  CTF will also sponsor a reception at the Focus on 
the Future Conference on November 17, 2014.   
 
State Route 4 Tour:  September 19, 2014 
Ross Chittenden, Jack Hall and I toured the SR 4 project with California Transportation 
Commission Executive Director Andre Boutros.  Bonny Nyaga from Caltrans gave us a very 
comprehensive review of the traffic switch and the construction staging for the bridges.  Mr. 
Boutros was impressed with the progress and asked for some pictures of the construction for 
possible inclusion in the next CTC annual report. 
 
CTP West County Workshop: September 20, 2014 
The fourth CTP in-person public workshop was held at 1:30p.m. at the Richmond Convention 
Center. Approximately 25 persons attended.  Commissioner Janet Abelson welcomed the 

7.3-2 51



Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 2999 Oak Road, Ste. 100, Walnut Creek, CA 94597
Phone: 925-256-4700    Fax: 925-256-4701    Website: www.ccta.net

attendees and gave introductory remarks. This was followed by Martin Engelmann’s slide 
presentation and public comment.  
 
TriLink Finding and Delivery Options:  September 22, 2014 
Martin Engelmann, Ross Chittenden, Randy Carlton and I met with Brian Dowd and Kent Marshall 
of Granite Construction and Kevin O'Brien of Bank of America Merrill Lynch to discuss strategies 
to deliver the SR 239/TriLink project as a Public Private Partnership (P3) project. We continue to 
explore options to advance the delivery and financing of this important project.  
 
CTP West County Workshop: September 22, 2014 
The fifth and final CTP in-person public workshop was held at 7:00 p.m. at the Hercules 
Community Center. Approximately 30 people attended. Hercules Mayor Myrna De Vera 
welcomed the attendees, and Vice Mayor Sherry McCoy gave introductory remarks. This was 
followed by Martin Engelmann’s slide presentation and public comment.  
 
Telephone Town Hall Meeting:  September 23, 2014 
In accordance with the Public Education and Outreach Plan for the 2014 CTP update, CCTA 
hosted its first telephone town hall meeting – one of our new ways of communicating with the 
public.  At one point, there were 4361 people on the call listening to the session.  We had more 
than 250 people stay on the call for over 40 minutes and were able to answer 24 questions in the 
60-minute event. 
 
Bay Area Council Economic Institute:  September 24, 2014 
Martin Engelmann, Ross Chittenden, Linsey Willis and I participated in a conference call with the 
Bay Area Council Economic Institute.  We are looking for a study to show how the investment in a 
transportation corridor such as SR 4 will generate an uptick in the local economy for future 
generations to enjoy.  There are studies that show how many short term jobs are created during 
construction by the investment.  We would like to look to see if we can predict the local 
economic growth after the dust settles from construction. 
 
Caltrans E-76 Training:  September 24, 2014 
Peter Engel and Ivan Ramirez attended a training in San Jose on process and requirements for 
submitting and obtaining an E-76.  An E-76 is the “Request for Authorization” to proceed on a 
federally funded project administered through Caltrans on FHWA projects.   
 
Remy Goldsmith:  September 25, 2014 
Remy Goldsmith, District Director for Senator Mark DeSaulnier, visited our office to introduce 
herself.  Ms. Goldsmith has been on the job for a few months. 
 
CTP Presentation to West County Mayors Conference: September 25, 2014 
The West County Mayors met in Hercules and received a presentation from Martin Engelmann 
on the Draft 2014 CTP. 
 
Streetline Presentation:  September 26, 2014 
Jack Hall, Linsey Willis, and I met with officials from Streetline.  Joe Enke, City of Martinez Senior 
Civil Engineer, and Ramin Bolourchian from Caltrans, also attended the meeting regarding the 

7.3-3 52



Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 2999 Oak Road, Ste. 100, Walnut Creek, CA 94597
Phone: 925-256-4700    Fax: 925-256-4701    Website: www.ccta.net

close-out the construction phase for the Pacheco Transit Hub and beginning of the maintenance 
and operation phase of the project.  Streetline officials explained the how the various 
applications work for the system.  As the system matures, Streetline will develop any specialized 
reports that the City or Caltrans are interested in.  Ramin works in the TMC at Caltrans and he 
was there to work with us to display the number of vacant parking spaces on the various 
changeable message signs near the Transit Hub. 
 
San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority (SJJPA) Board Meeting:  September 26, 2014 
Peter Engel attended the SJJPA meeting in Hanford, California.  The SJPPA Board will provide 
policy direction for the San Joaquin Amtrak service from Oakland to Bakersfield.  Don Tatzin 
represents CCTA on the SJJPA Board.  The main topic of discussion was the transfer agreement 
between Caltrans and the SJJPA.  The transfer agreement will provide SJJPA management and 
policy authority for the service.  The agreement is anticipated to have the first phase signed in 
December giving SJJPA authority to begin planning and marketing activities.  A second phase, 
expected in early 2015, would transfer the balance of activities to the SJJPA. 
 
SR4/SR 160 Connector Ramp Project Partnering Meeting:  September 29, 2014 
Ivan Ramirez, Ross Chittenden and I met with team members from the contractor RGW 
Construction and the partnering consultant GLA.  This was our first partnering meeting on the 
project.  There were some issues we discussed in depth.  The first was imported borrow.  The 
project needs dirt to build the embankments.   Caltrans staff has made some changes in the 
requirements for documentation and testing frequency for imported borrow that has not 
appeared on other “State” run projects.  Ivan is working on this issue.  The second was 
winterization of the project.  The contractor is erecting their falsework and may need to revise 
their approach to the foundations.  They are working on this issue.  The last major issue was the 
schedule.  The project started on time with the subcontractor making progress on the cast-in-
drilled-holes (CIDH) pile work which was identified as an early risk.  However, currently the 
project schedule has slipped a bit and we are working on getting the project back on schedule. 
 
CTP Presentation to the East Contra Costa Collaborative (EC2 ): September 30, 2014 
Martin Engelmann and Ross Chittenden attended a meeting of EC2 in Antioch. Representatives 
from East County businesses, local jurisdictions, and Non-Governmental Organizations were in 
attendance to receive a presentation from Martin Engelmann on the Draft 2014 CTP.  
 
New Employee Stephanie Hu: October 1, 2014 
Stephanie Hu, Associate Engineer, started work at CCTA on October 1st. Ms. Hu has a Master’s 
degree in Civil and Environmental Engineering, and has over 12 years of professional experience 
with a large engineering firm and a wide range of experience on local street improvement 
projects, and transit and freeway interchange projects. 
 
Autonomous Vehicle Test Bed Press Release:  October 1, 2014 
Linsey Willis released the news that CCTA with the City of Concord, Mercedes-Benz and the US 
Navy had signed an agreement forming a partnership to test Autonomous Vehicles at the 
Concord Naval Weapon Station.  The location is the largest secure test site in the United States.  
This started a series of requests from the media for more information. 
 

7.3-4 53



Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 2999 Oak Road, Ste. 100, Walnut Creek, CA 94597
Phone: 925-256-4700    Fax: 925-256-4701    Website: www.ccta.net

KCBS Radio:  October 1, 2014 
I was interviewed by KCBS reporter.  He was very enthused about the test bed and even more 
excited because it was in the Bay Area.  The interview aired in the afternoon. 
 
KGO Radio:  October 1, 2014 
Linsey Willis was interviewed by KGO about the test bed.  Her interview aired in the afternoon.   
Contra Costa Times:  October 1, 2014 
Jack Hall was interviewed by the CCT about the test bed.  His interview was printed the next day. 
 
Regional Planning Committee (RPC) Meeting: October 1, 2014  
The quarterly RPC meeting was held in Oakland at MTC. Martin Engelmann attended as the 
representative of the CMA Planning Directors. 
 
Tom Curry Interview:  October 2, 2014 
I was interviewed by Tom Curry, who writes for “The Container” for Congressional Quarterly/Roll 
Call in Washington DC, about the test bed.  The interview has been printed in two parts.  Tom 
was interested in why CCTA developed the test bed and what tests would be performed.   
 
Gabe Nelson:  October 2, 2014 
I was interviewed by Gabe Nelson of Automotive News.  He was very interested in the test bed 
for Autonomous Vehicles in Contra Costa.  The article will be published shortly. 
 
East Bay EDA Executive Committee Meeting:  October 2, 2014  
I gave a speech at the EBEDA Executive Committee meeting about the update of the Countywide 
Transportation Plan, polling results and next steps.  Art Dao, Executive Director ACTC, spoke 
about his upcoming ballot measure and Randy Rentschler, Legislation and Public Affairs Director 
for MTC, gave the committee a sneak peak of the latest jobs, housing and congestion results.  If 
we go to the ballot in the near term, we should get a support vote from the EBEDA. 
 
City of Orinda:  October 2, 2014 
Janet Keeter, City Manager, Chuck Swanson, Public Works and Engineering Services Director, and 
Dennis Fay, Orinda Citizens Infrastructure Oversight Commission met with Ross Chittenden, 
Martin Engelmann, Linsey Willis and I to discuss the Countywide Transportation Plan and how to 
make sure their projects are in the plan.  Martin gave them a great overview of the process.  
They will send us a letter with their projects and go the website 
www.keepcontracostamoving.net and make sure they submit their requests there too. 
 
Contra Costa Mayors Conference Meeting: October 2, 2014 
I gave a short update on the CTP.  I asked for the attendees help to make sure we are getting a 
comprehensive list of transportation needs from the various area of Contra Costa County. 
 
HNTB THINK: Infrastructure Forum:  October 3, 2014 
I moderated a panel at HNTB’s THINK:  Infrastructure Forum in San Francisco.  The panel 
consisted of Alix Bockelman, MTC, Tilly Chang, SFCTA, Carolyn Gonot, Santa Clara VTA, Greg Le 
Frois, HNTB and Jim Wunderman, Bay Area Council.  The two-hour forum focused on three areas.  
The first was how the public and private sectors can better work together.  The second was how 

7.3-5 54



Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 2999 Oak Road, Ste. 100, Walnut Creek, CA 94597
Phone: 925-256-4700    Fax: 925-256-4701    Website: www.ccta.net

technology best can bring together the elements of success.  The last was how best to 
communicate the economic benefits of transportation improvements to the public.  There were 
25 transportation experts invited from all over the Bay Area who participated in the forum.  
HNTB will produce a summary of the discussion.   
 
Bay Trail Connection Meeting:  October 6, 2014 
I attended a meeting in Richmond to discuss the development of a Bay Trail connection east of 
the Richmond/San Rafael Bridge. The meeting included representatives from the City of 
Richmond, Trails for Richmond Action Committee (TRAC), and representatives from MTC/BATA, 
including Richmond Council Member/CCTA Commissioner Tom Butt, MTC Commissioner/CCTA 
Ex-Officio Representative Amy Worth. We are hoping to reach consensus on the new alignment 
of the bike path on the north side of I-580. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Staff Out-of-State Travel – Prior Reporting Period 
As reported in September, Peter Engel attended a special one-day session in Branson, Missouri 
on transit ITS as it pertains to seniors, veterans, and people with disabilities, which was 
sponsored by the Federal Transit Administration. Expenses for the trip totaled $955.21. 
 

7.3-6 55



56



57



58



59



60



61



TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership and Cooperation 
Clayton, Concord, Martinez, Pleasant Hill, Walnut Creek and Contra Costa County 

2300 Contra Costa Boulevard, Suite 110 
Pleasant Hill, CA  94523 

(925) 969-0841 
 
 
November 20, 2014 
 
 
 
Randell H. Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100 
Walnut Creek, CA  94597 
 

Re:  Status Letter for TRANSPAC Meeting – November 13, 2014 
 
Dear Mr. Iwasaki: 
 
At its meeting on November 13, 2014, TRANSPAC took the following actions that may be 
of interest to the Transportation Authority: 
 
1. Approved the TRANSPAC 2014/2015 Budget. 

 
2. Received report from Lynn Overcashier, Program Manager, 511 Contra Costa on 

the status of Street Smarts activities. 
 

3. Received an update from the TRANSPAC Subcommittee (Durant, Pierce, and 
Mitchoff) on the Executive Director Recruitment process. 
 

4. Received report from Christopher Diaz, Attorney with Best Best & Kreiger (BBK) 
on the status of the Joint Powers Authority (JPA). 

 
TRANSPAC hopes that this information is useful to you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Barbara Neustadter 
TRANSPAC Manager 
 
cc:   TRANSPAC Representatives; TRANSPAC TAC and staff 
 Candace Andersen, Chair – SWAT 
 Sal Evola, Chair – TRANSPLAN 
 Martin Engelmann, Hisham Noeimi, Brad Beck (CCTA) 

62



Mr. Randall H. Iwasaki 
November 20, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
 John Nemeth – WCCTAC 
 Janet Abelson – WCCTAC  
 Jamar I. Stamps – TRANSPLAN 
 Andy Dillard – SWAT 
 Danice Rosenbohm, CCTA 
 June Catalano, Diana Vavrek, Diane Bentley – City of Pleasant Hill 
  

 
 
 
 

63



 

 

TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership and Cooperation 
Clayton, Concord, Martinez, Pleasant Hill, Walnut Creek and Contra Costa County 

2300 Contra Costa Boulevard, Suite 110 
Pleasant Hill, CA  94523 

(925) 969-0841 
 
 
December 15, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
Randell H. Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100 
Walnut Creek, CA  94597 
 

Re:  Status Letter for TRANSPAC Meeting – December 11, 2014 
 
Dear Mr. Iwasaki: 
 
At its meeting on December 11, 2014, TRANSPAC took the following actions that may be 
of interest to the Transportation Authority: 
 
1. Approved the “Proposal for Adoption” of the Central County Action Plan, as 

amended, to be forwarded to the CCTA Board. 
 

2. Approved the proposed Monument Boulevard Neighborhood Shuttle funding 
swap, to be forwarded to the CCTA Board. 
 

3. Approved the FY 2015/16 TRANSPAC / TRANSPLAN 511 Contra Costa 
Program Workplan with funds from the BAAQMD TFCA, CCTA Measure J Line 
17, and MTC CMAQ (Employer Outreach). 
 

4. Approved 511 Contra Costa Workplan and Budget for FY 2014/15 and 2015/16 
Measure J 21a Safe Transportation for Children Funds. 
 

5. Reappointed David Durant to the CCTA Board for the two-year term from 
February 1, 2015 through January 31, 2017. 
 

6. Approved revised TRANSPAC Meeting Schedule for 2015. 
 

7. Received update on the search for an Interim TRANSPAC Executive Director, 
and the status of the Joint Powers Authority (JPA). 
 

 
 

64



Mr. Randall H. Iwasaki 
December 15, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 

 

TRANSPAC hopes that this information is useful to you. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Barbara Neustadter 
TRANSPAC Manager 
 
cc:   TRANSPAC Representatives; TRANSPAC TAC and staff 
 Candace Andersen, Chair – SWAT 
 Sal Evola, Chair – TRANSPLAN 
 Martin Engelmann, Hisham Noeimi, Brad Beck (CCTA) 
 John Nemeth – WCCTAC 
 Janet Abelson – WCCTAC  
 Jamar I. Stamps – TRANSPLAN 
 Andy Dillard – SWAT 
 Danice Rosenbohm, CCTA 
 June Catalano, Diana Vavrek, Diane Bentley – City of Pleasant Hill 
  

 
 
 
 

65



 
Phone: 925.674.7832        Fax: 925.674.7258      jamar.stamps@dcd.cccounty.us      www.transplan.us 

 
G:\Transportation\Committees\TRANSPLAN\TPLAN_Year\2014-15\summary reports\TRANSPLAN Meeting Summary CCTA 12_11_14.doc 
File: Transportation > Committees > CCTA > TRANSPLAN > 2014 

 

TRANSPLAN COMMITTEE 
EAST COUNTY TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 
Antioch • Brentwood • Oakley • Pittsburg • Contra Costa County 
30 Muir Road, Martinez, CA 94553  
 
December 12, 2014 
 
Mr. Randell H. Iwasaki, Executive Director 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) 
2999 Oak Road, Suite 100 
Walnut Creek, CA 94597 
 

Dear Mr. Iwasaki: 
 

This correspondence reports on the actions and discussions during the TRANSPLAN Committee meeting 
on December 11, 2014. 
 

ELECT TRANSPLAN Chair and Vice-Chair for 2015.  The TRANSPLAN Committee unanimously 
voted Mayor Wade Harper (Antioch) and Mayor Robert Taylor (Brentwood) as the TRANPSLAN Chair 
and Vice-Chair, respectively.    
 
APPOINT TRANSPLAN Representative to the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) 
Board. The TRANSPLAN Committee unanimously voted to re-appoint Councilmember Kevin Romick 
(Oakley) as the TRANSPLAN representative to the CCTA Board for the 2/1/2015 through 1/31/2017 
term. Mayor Sal Evola (Pittsburg) was appointed as the alternate.  
 
APPROVE the “Proposal for Adoption” East County Action Plan for Routes of Regional 
Significance. TRANSPLAN staff provided an update to the Committee on the Action Plan and 
Countywide Transportation Plan (CTP) process as it pertains to TRANSPLAN. The Committee upheld 
the TRANSPLAN Technical Advisory Committee’s (TAC) recommendation to approve the “Proposal for 
Adoption” and forward it to CCTA for inclusion in the CTP.  
 
APPROVE Amendment No. 2 to the 2013 Measure J Strategic Plan. The Committee unanimously 
approved the subject item which reprograms $2.4 million from the SR4 Widening (Project 3001) to 
Pittsburg Center Station (Project 2002) and $2.28 million from the East County Construction Reserve and 
$0.42 million from the SR4 Widening (Project 3001) to eBART (Project 2001).  
 
RECEIVE semi-annual update on the eBART project. BART staff provided an update on the progress 
of the project, future contracts and timing for the construction and completion of the project from 
Pittsburg/Bay Point to Hillcrest station.  
 
The next regularly scheduled TRANSPLAN Committee meeting will be on Thursday, January 15, 2015 
at 6:30 p.m. at the Tri Delta Transit offices in Antioch. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
Jamar Stamps, TRANSPLAN Staff 
 
c: TRANSPLAN Committee 
 A. Dillard, SWAT/TVTC 
 A. Tucci-Smith, TRANSPAC 
 J. Nemeth, WCCTAC 

D. Rosenbohm, CCTA 
J. Townsend, EBRPD 
D. Dennis, ECCRFFA 

 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77


	RTPC Memo 111914.pdf
	04B4rev.pdf
	04B4.pdf
	This Page Intentionally Blank.pdf





